
 

White Salmon Planning Commission Meeting 
A G E N D A  

February 08, 2023 – 5:30 PM 
119 NE Church and Via Zoom Teleconference 

 
Meeting ID: 870 7639 6342 

Call in Number: 1 (253) 215-8782 US (Tacoma) 
 

Call to Order/Roll Call 

Public Comment 

Approval of Minutes 
1. Approval of Minutes - March 10, 2021 
2. Approval of Minutes - October 26, 2022 
3. Approval of Minutes - November 9, 2022 
4. Approval of Minutes - December 14, 2022 

Public Hearing 
5. WS-VAR-2022.002, Blackmon 

The Applicant seeks to obtain a variance to White Salmon Municipal Code 17.28.034(A3) 
Dwelling Standards for an R-2 zoned lot located at 850 E Jewett Blvd to build a single-
family residence eventually. 
 
A copy of the proposed Variance is available on the City's website or by calling 
Erika  Castro Guzman at (509) 493-1133 x209. Written comments may be submitted to 
Erikac@ci.white-salmon.wa.us by 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, February 8, 2023, noting in 
the subject line Public Hearing – Proposed Variance 2022.002. Individuals who wish to 
testify via teleconference or in person will be allowed to do so. 

Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

1. Approval of Minutes - March 10, 2021

2



 

 

 

CITY OF WHITE SALMON 
Planning Commission Meeting - Wednesday, March 10, 2021 

DRAFT 

  

COMMISSION AND ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL PRESENT 

  Commission Members: 

Greg Hohensee, Chair 

Ross Henry 

Michael Morneault 

Tom Stevenson (By telephone) 

 

Excused: 

Seth Gilchrist, Excused 

Staff: 

Pat Munyan, City Administrator 

Jan Brending, City Clerk-Treasurer 

Ken Woodrich, City Attorney 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 
Ross Henry called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. Two audience members were present in person.  A 
quorum of planning commissioner members was present. 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
Ross Henry said he would like to propose adding an agenda item related to appointing the chair of the 
Planning Commission. 
 
Moved by Tom Stevenson. Seconded by Michael Morneault. 
Motion to add an agenda item for Appointment of Chair.  CARRIED 4-0. 
 
APPOINTMEN OF CHAIR 
Moved by Ross Henry. Seconded by Tom Stevenson. 
Motion to nominate Greg Hohensee as Chair. CARRIED 4–0 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. Approval of Meeting Minutes of February 10, 2021 

 

Moved by Michael Morneault. Seconded by Tom Stevenson. 

Motion to approve meeting minutes of February 10, 2021. CARRIED 4–0. 
 
2. Approval of Meeting Minutes of February 24, 2021 
 
 Moved by Tom Stevenson. Seconded by Michael Morneault. 
 Motion to approve meeting minutes of February 24, 2021. CARRIED 4-0. 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
3. Design Standard Review (WS-DR-2020.001) – Tao Berman, Applicant  

Chair Greg Hohensee reviewed the procedures for the public hearing. No ex parte contact was 
reported by Planning Commissioners. 
 
Jan Brending and Pat Munyan provided an overview of the design review application for Mt. Hood 
View Apartments LLC submitted by Tao Berman. The design review relates to the exterior of a new 
mixed-use building located at 115 N. Main Street. The building is currently under construction. It was 
noted the applicant has been granted a conditional use permit by the Planning Commission to 

3



City of White Salmon      

Planning Commission Minutes – March 10, 2021 

 

Page 2 of 3 

construct a second independent structure with a mix of long-term residences, short-term vacation 
rentals, and other retail space on the same parcel. Berman is requesting the use of corrugated, two-
toned metal siding for the new mixed-use structure. 
 
Tao Berman and his architect, Doug Hatch made a presentation regarding the proposed use of 
corrugated, two-tone metal siding noting that the goal is break up the mass of the structure. 
 
Greg Hohensee, Commission Chair reviewed the city’s municipal code related to the design review. 
 
Commission members and staff discussed the proposal. Jan Brending read a statement from Seth 
Gilchrist into the record. Gilchrist stated that he has reviewed the city’s findings and architectural 
drawings and believe the request should be approved as Berman is working to improve the 
architectural appearance of the building. Gilchrist noted the city’s codes do not specify what is 
acceptable architecture. 
 
Moved by Tom Stevenson. Seconded by Michael Morneault. 
Motion to approve request (WS-DR-202.001) by Tao Berman to use corrugated, two-tone metal 
siding for the new mixed-use structure located at 115 N. Main Street finding that it is compatibly 
designed and to be applied intentionally rather relied on solely as a less expensive option. CARRIED 
4-0. 

  
PUBLIC COMMENT  
4. No additional comments on the draft elements of the Comprehensive Plan were received. 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
5. Comprehensive Plan Update Workshop 
 a. Economic Element 

Staff reviewed comments received by Planning Commissioners and City Council Members 
regarding the draft Economic Element and responded to the applicability to the 
comprehensive plan, policy or table for a code interpretation conversation. Additional 
discussion included wordsmithing and staff clarification. 
 

b. Park and Recreation Element 
Staff reviewed comments received by Planning Commissioners and City Council Members 
regarding the draft Park and Recreation Element and responded to the applicability to the 
comprehensive plan, policy or table for a code interpretation conversation. Additional 
discussion included wordsmithing and staff clarification. 

 
The Planning Commission will discuss the History and Historic Places Element, Transportation 
Element, Public Facilities and Service Element, and the Capital Improvement Program Element at the 
next Planning Commission meeting on March 24, 2021. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 

 
 

Greg Hohensee, Chair Erika Castro Guzman, Associate Planner 

 

 

4



City of White Salmon      

Planning Commission Minutes – March 10, 2021 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

5



File Attachments for Item:

2. Approval of Meeting Minutes - October 26, 2022

6



 

 

 

CITY OF WHITE SALMON 
Planning Commission Meeting - Wednesday, October 26, 2022 

DRAFT 

  

COMMISSION AND ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL PRESENT 

  Commission Members: 

Greg Hohensee, Chairman 

Ross Henry 

Tom Stevenson 

Seth Gilchrist  

Michael Morneault (Absent Excused)  

Staff: 

Jeff Broderick, City Land-Use Planner 

Erika Castro Guzman, City Associate Planner 

Kenneth Woodrich, City Attorney 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 

Chairman Greg Hohensee called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. A quorum of planning commissioner 
members was present. Ten audience members attended in person or by teleconference. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
No written public comment or spoken testimony was made. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Proposed Variance 2022.001 
 

Public Hearing  
Greg Hohensee, the Chairman, opened the public hearing at 5:33 p.m. and read the Appearance of 
Fairness Doctrine to the planning commissioners for the public hearing; no conflict of interests or 
concerns arose.  
 
Staff Presentation  
The Land-use Planner, Jeff Broderick, presented the variance report to the Planning Commission. 
 
The variance proposes a modification from White Salmon Municipal Code 17.24.040(F) regarding 
density provisions: the requirement for a front yard setback from 20-ft to 0-ft front yard setback. The 
subject property, owned by Steven Kingsford-Smith, is located at 716 NE Tohomish Street. The 
proposed 0-ft frontage is for the applicant’s eventual desire to build a single-family residence. 
 

The property is east of the White Salmon Ball Fields/Spok’s Bike Park and south of the White Salmon 
Gun Range, fronting off NE Tohomish and rearing NE Park Ave. The site is primarily sloped, most 
predominantly near its northern property boundary along NE Park Ave. The site is currently vacant. 
 
The purpose of the variance process is to provide a mechanism where the city may grant relief from 
the provisions of Title 17 where hardship is a result of the physical characteristics of the subject 
property. Staff has reviewed the Applicant’s variance request and has found that although there is a 
steep slope on this property, previous land use actions (1995.001 Variance) addressed this by granting 
a variance to the front setback from 20 feet to 10 feet and no hardship that could be reasonably 
applied as a direct result of additional physical characteristics of the subject property and in 1996 a 
variance to allow a zero lot line development was denied. The circumstances for making that decision 
have remained the same. Homes are commonly designed and constructed to fit the lot size and 
shape. Because parking is not addressed in materials submitted by Applicant, Staff concluded that an 
additional variance would be required to address this issue, or if a garage is part of a future residence, 

7



City of White Salmon      

Planning Commission Minutes – October 26, 2022 

Page 2 of 8 

the garage would enter directly into the public right of way with no sightline visibility. Staff notes that 
even if off-street parking issues were addressed to the City's satisfaction by meeting parking 
requirements per City code, granting an additional setback variance from the previously granted 10 -
foot variance to zero feet constitutes a special privilege. In addition, granting of the variance request 
would be found to be materially detrimental to the public welfare, as well as injurious to the future 
adjacent property owners. 

 
Recommendation: Staff recommends the Planning Commission deny Variance 2022.001, a variance to 
reduce the present 10-foot setback allowed in the 1995 variance decision to a zero-lot line 
development. There are no recommended conditions of approval.  
 
Applicant Presentation  
The applicant and owner, Steven Kingsford-Smith, presented his case to the Planning Commission 
with the assistance of ten photographs illustrating his property's steepness vs. the adjacent property 
to the east (along NE Tohomish Ave). 
 
Kingsford-Smith stated he'd been a resident of White Salmon for over 21 years, has raised his 
daughter in the area, and is a teacher with the White Salmon Valley School District. He said he 
purchased the property along Tohomish Street seven years ago and has acquainted himself with the 
local neighborhood with the special desire to 
build his modest retirement home. 
 
Steven Kingsford-Smith stated that in May 2022, 
he and his architect, Alice Hellyar, had a pre-
application meeting with the former planner, 
Brendan Conboy, and Bill Hunsaker, Building 
Official, to discuss the general variance 
procedure for his proposed residential site plan. 
He stated that staff encouraged his variance 
application at that time. Quoting a portion of 
WSMC 17.80.058 Variance Purpose and Criteria 
(1), he noted that his understanding of said code 
means that to be approved, a proposed project 
must likely succeed or be effective in real 
circumstances, feasibly sensible, and realistic.  
 
Kingsford-Smith stated that his lot is marketably different from the three lots to the east, from which 
it was subdivided; therefore, believes this granting of the variance would not constitute a special 
privilege as he thinks the three lots are entirely different. He stated that his lot has a lot less gentle 
sloping surface compared to the other three parcels by referring to the city’s critical area slope 
hazardous map where he points to the red spot indicating 40-
percent and up slope; the orange illustrates 15 to 39.99-percent 
slope; and the yellow identifies 0 to 14.99-percent slope. 
 
The Applicant shared that his property boundaries were not 
surveyed nor marked, and nor were his neighbors. Still, he 
believes that the lots to the east have their parking and front 
yard within the right-of-way, and their residences are built 
closer to the public road than the 1995 variance granted. He 
narrates each photo to show the “lack-there-of flat” or “gently 
sloped” or “less topographical challenges” in comparison to 716 
NE Tohomish St.  

8



City of White Salmon      

Planning Commission Minutes – October 26, 2022 

Page 3 of 8 

 
In conclusion, Kingsford-Smith states that his property is not practical, not feasible, and different from 
the properties in the same subdivision because it has far more steeply sloped land. He stated that the 
existing frontage variance does not meet the developmental needs of 716 NE Tohomish, regardless of 
the findings in the 1995 variance to be equivalent to the properties to the east. He said that adhering 
to the 10-ft front setback, his proposed 1,100 sq. ft. home (approximately 24’ by 48’) would extend 
48’ into the property, but from his calculations from a 10' setback, would place the northern 
foundation pilings on a slope of 40-percent or greater. He said this puts unnecessary hardship on him 
(as the property owner) for environmental reasons, erosion of slope stability reasons, site safety, and 
cost. He believes that placing a structure on the property line would cause no interference (with snow 
plowing, on-street parking, potential future sidewalks, or any other supposed complaints) that would 
make his project a feasible and practicable reality.  
 
Kingsford-Smith addressed that he did not include a parking drawing in his land-use application 
because it does not require a building permit plan; he stated that the zoning’s parking would be met 
and shown for at the time of the building permit process. He emphasized that the variance is solely 
for the placement of the residential structure. Still, he said he would likely propose a hillside parking 
deck (platform) parking from the paved right-of-way on private property.  

 
Public Comment 
Two written public comments in opposition were submitted by Susan Benedict, 673 NE Tohomish St, 
and Jay Carroll, also from 673 NE Tohomish St, as part of the packet. 
 
No spoken testimony was made. 
 
Staff Rebuttal 
Land-use Planner, Jeff Broderick, addressed the applicant’s comparison of his property by stating that 
specifically regarding the Williams’ property, 718 NE Tohomish St, based on previous building permits 
on file, the original residence built appears to have at least a 10-feet frontage, meeting the variance 
standard granted in 1995. He continued by stating that it seemed to meet the 20-ft frontage based on 
a building site plan illustrating the garage at a 23-ft front setback, where the residence is slightly 
setback forward. Planner Broderick concluded that the Williams’ residence is in compliance, possibly 
meeting the standard front setback. 
 
Planner Broderick said that while this parcel is steep, it is not a cliff and is buildable, although it means 
that construction will be more costly. He stated that the feasibility of development is not a reason to 
grant a variance and setting precedence to granting a variance solely on cost can be detrimental to 
the public. He explained that the parcel’s attributes had stayed the same since the subject parcel was 
created (in 1995), and the owner purchased the property aware of said attributes. He refers to the 
1995 variance as he states that it does account for the slope, allowing a 50-percent frontage reduction 
from the zoning standard. 
 
Regarding construction safety, Planner Broderick said construction workers are trained to work at 
different heights, regardless of the number of stories of a building or slope. 
 
Regarding stormwater run-off, He stated that all new construction must account for all of its 
stormwater on-site, regardless of location. 
 
Planner Broderick additionally stated that specific to parking, because it was not addressed, with a 
structure at the property line, staff was concerned that this could lead to future variances before 
construction; therefore, stating parking is an issue in this case.  
 

9



City of White Salmon      

Planning Commission Minutes – October 26, 2022 

Page 4 of 8 

Applicant Closing Rebuttal 
The applicant and owner, Steven Kingsford-Smith, reiterates that his property is being viewed as 
equivalent to the three properties to the east, while he believes that his property is the most 
challenging to develop; he stated that while he thinks the 1995 variance accommodates for the other 
parcels developments, it did not account for his; otherwise it would have already been developed. He 
stated that his lot has less gently sloped land and more steeper sloped land; therefore would not be 
granted a special privilege because it is a lot that requires special requirements. Kingsford-Smith 
restated that during his pre-application meeting, he was encouraged by former staff to proceed with 
the application.  
 
Discussion 

The Planning Commission discussed the variance proposal for 716 NE Tohomish Street, requesting a 
0-ft frontage for the applicant's eventual desire to build a single-family residence. 

 

Commissioner Ross Heney asked if a 30-percent slope or greater triggered a geotechnical report for 
new construction. Planner Broderick stated that the code indicates a 40-percent slope or greater. 
Commissioner Henry questioned that the structure's front setback for Williams' property should have 
been noted on the survey map of record. Chairman Greg Hohensee clarified that there is a special 
note indicating the granted 10-foot front setback it is on the recorded short-plat survey, referring to 
the History of the Property presentation slide. Commissioner Heney correctly identified he was 
referring to the Williams' Plot Plan document. Chairman Hohensee clarifies that the existing residence 
is close to meeting the standard front setback requirement. Planner Broderick explained that the city 
does not have the original residential plans for 718 NE Tohomish Street/Williams property but does 
have the proposed addition plans. That is why the plot plan referenced does not have the main 
structure setback, but does have the addition plans, therefore can extrapolate that the existing single-
family residence is close to the 20-foot setback but cannot determine precisely what distance.  

 

Commissioner Tom Stevenson stated the width of NE Tohomish St right-of-way is 60 feet while the 
surrounding streets are less. Planner Broderick noted that he did walk the site in question and is 
aware of its slope and the contour lines on the proposed site plan. He is also aware that granting this 
variance would set a precedent for variances to setbacks to what are buildable lots. Commissioner 
Stevenson asked what the width of the paved road was; Staff would have to measure said road to 
answer. 

 

Commissioner Seth Gilchrist stated that in the various mentions of building a driveway, it was in his 
observations it seems impossible to make a driveway that does not cross the city right-of-way, more 
so, if the structures were pushed back 10-ft, it would be an additional 10-feet of the driveway that 
would still require right-of-way access onto NE Tohomish St paved road. Planner Broderick stated that 
the city parking code is flexible, assuming a vehicle can park (side by side, tandem, or parallel) on 
private property, with or without a garage. He stated that parking was not relevant to the variance 
decision. Planner Broderick noted that a concern with having a residential structure up to the right-of-
way is that if people are parking in front of the house, they may start parking further and further into 
traffic, regardless of the width of the existing right-of-way as at some point the road will be re-
developed. Commissioner Gilchrist stated that by staff saying that parking was an issue as a reason to 
deny the variance, then stating parking location is irrelevant to the decision confuses him. Chairman 
Hohensee clarified that the application does not address parking and that the planning commission is 
tasked with making a decision from the application as presented, and parking must be on-site per 
code. Planner Broderick further clarified that the applicant proposed their driveway within the right-
of-way because staff is concerned about a potential parking encroachment. Commissioner Gilchrist 
stated that he did visit and walk the site and estimated the paved road width to be 24-ft and noted 
there was a lot of space between the pavement and the proposed building site; he further 
commented that the public comments received that expressed safety access concerns can be placed 

10



City of White Salmon      

Planning Commission Minutes – October 26, 2022 

Page 5 of 8 

in a subjective category because he believes one could get an emergency vehicle as it currently exists. 
He stated that he considers this road to be unlikely to be expanded because it serves a small area and 
said that if the city would extend this road's use to expand across the 60-ft width, it would be poor 
urban planning, but would encourage it to be used for sidewalks and bike lanes. Commissioner 
Gilchrist stated that the lot looked an extremely challenging looking-lot to build on and sides with the 
applicant that it has different characteristics than the neighboring lots. In this case, he concludes that 
a zero-lot line would present any safety concerns. 

 

Chairman Hohensee had no questions or clarification of the presentation. 

 

Commissioner Stevenson sought clarification from the applicant as to why parking was not addressed 
through this variance application because it seems important to the decision discussed. The applicant, 
Stephen Kingsford-Smith, referred to the photo looking west of his vehicle parking parallel to the road 
that shows the only flat right-of-way that would lead to an elevated bridge (10' by 10') with utilities 
underneath at the property line or would also work if the house was setback 10' from the property 
line. He states that there is no flat ground to make a driveway to the house; therefore, in theory, it 
would have a two-car bridge that would act as a driveway to park in front of the house whether the 
house started 10 feet back from the edge of the right of way. However, it would create a long bridge 
to the home or leading to the property line, where the cars would park in front of the house. Alice 
Hellyar, the Architect, further clarified that parking had not been decided; the variance for the 
residential structure's placement is the first step to see what is feasible but assures there are creative 
ways to park on steep slopes to avoid parking in the city's right-of-way.  

 

Commissioner Stevenson asks if the city has a survey record of the front building setback to the 
Pearson residence in relation to city right-of-way; Planner Broderick stated that the property was not 
part of the decision, no.  

 

Commissioner Henry noted that there is a two-car parking requirement when new construction is 
proposed. Planner Broderick clarified that city code specifies that vehicles must be parked on-site and 
accommodated off the city's right-of-way. 

 

Planner Broderick sought clarification from the applicant and their architect to ensure a clear 
understanding of the variance requested. He clarified that there is an allowed outright 10-ft front 
setback based on the 1995 variance; vehicles may be parked between the city right-of-way and the 
10-ft setback. He asked the applicant if he was proposing his house to be constructed at the property 
line, a 10-ft setback, or a 20-ft setback. Kingsford-Smith illustrated his understanding of property 
setbacks. Chairman Hohensee summarizes his illustration as an outright use based on the 1995 
variance. Kingsford-Smith understands the frontage setback and wants to build up to the property 
line.  

 

Commissioner Henry states that he now understands that although parking is not important to the 
variance decision, it would be required to pass the next step, which would be the building permit 
review.  

 

City Attorney, Ken Woodrich, noted that the applicant understands that the Planning Commission 
body does not have the authority to authorize any use of the city’s right-of-way; it is only allowed by 
the City Council, regardless of the reliance on what prior staff may have said in a pre-application 
meeting. If the applicant would like to request the use of the city's right-of-way, it would be 
considered a Type D Right-of-Way Application, with an entirely different process and decided by the 
City Council.  

 

11



City of White Salmon      

Planning Commission Minutes – October 26, 2022 

Page 6 of 8 

Chairman Hohensee closed the public hearing at 6:59 p.m. 
 
Motion 
Moved by Tom Stevenson. Seconded by Seth Gilchrist.  
Motion to approve, as is, Variance 2022.001 regarding WSMC 17.24.040(F), regarding density 
provisions, to allow a 0-ft front setback for the property addressed at 716 NE Tohomish Street. 
 
Discussion 
Commissioner Stevenson stated that he believes this is a unique situation because he would not like 
to make this a precedence but said he respects Planner Broderick's concerns. He states that this is a 
19-ft road within a 60-ft right-fo-way built by former City Administrator Pat Munyan with a grant. He 
shared that he grew up playing in Jewett Creek and is aware of how steep the properties in this area 
are, and a 60-ft right of way, in this instance, can be viewed as oversized—he stated that during his 
site visit, there might be neighboring fencing encroachments. 

Call to Order: Attorney Woodrich interrupts Commissioner Stevenson to let him know that he 
is talking about things that are not within the public hearing record, therefore, cannot be 
considered for decision-making. He advised Chairman Hohensee to have the commissioners 
withdraw their motion and reopen the public hearing to allow any additional comments. 

 
Motion Withdrawn 
Seth Gilchrist withdrew his second to the motion. Tom Stevenson withdrew his proposed motion.  
 
Public Hearing Reopened 
Chairman Hohensee reopened the public testimony of the hearing at 7:13 p.m. Exclusilty to allow 
Commissioners to add points of fact into the record upon Attorney Woodrich’s recommendation.  
 
Commissioner Tom Stevenson stated that he believes that neighboring houses encroach into the city 
right-of-way significantly. He shared that he grew up in this neighborhood, which has always been 
small with minimal traffic. He stated that NE Tohomsh St has a 60-ft right-fo-way, partly over the 
hillside, and believed it was thoughtfully built to that width because it was unnecessary. He said he 
thinks the Pearson house is built up to the public right-of-way and, although not part of the variance, 
is part of the area. 
 
Commissioner Seth Gilchrist noted that on the drawings submitted on the plot plan, he calculated, 
based on the house site and topographic lines presented, that the house, as shown at a 0-ft setback, is 
built on a 50-percent average grade from the front to the back of the house. 
 
Chairman Greg Hohensee asked the staff if the house site, according to the building code, would have 
to be built to street grade. Planner Broderick stated that he assumed that the house would not need 
to be flush with the street. 
 
Commissioner Stevenson further noted that the grade percentage calculated by Commissioner 
Gilchrist is likely 10 feet below the street grade at the property's boundary. 
 

Commissioner Ross Henry had no additional comment. 

 
Chairman Hohensee closed the public testimony of the hearing at 7:19 p.m. 
 
Motion 
Moved by Tom Stevenson. Seconded by Seth Gilchrist.  
Motion to approve, as is, Variance 2022.001 regarding WSMC 17.24.040(F), regarding density 
provisions, to allow a 0-ft front setback for the property addressed at 716 NE Tohomish Street. 

12



City of White Salmon      

Planning Commission Minutes – October 26, 2022 

Page 7 of 8 

 
Discussion 
Commissioner Henry stated that he shares staff’s concern for setting precedence, especially working 
in real estate; he believes it does matter, especially since there has been a variance granted in 1995 
that the neighbors have adhered to, although in this case, the house would be on a slope, beyond the 
hill that is within the right-of-way and does into the property at 50-percent or greater. He stated that 
similar to this variance's pitch, the undeveloped lots south of NE Grandview Blvd; he would suspect 
that the planning commission would have to be prepared to see a similar variance be desired. 
Commissioner Henry stated that although the Comprehensive Plan anticipates motion to step away 
from 60-foot right-of-way widths and believes sidewalks were not a priority, therefore cannot be 
brought up as contentious to an application. In conclusion, he stated that vacant lots are transacted; 
therefore, if a buyer has not done their due diligence in selling, complicated building sites are factors 
of a property's selling value. 
 
Chairman Hohensee discussed the variance approval criteria and reiterated the staff's findings to the 
planning commission. He stated that middle ground has already been found through the variance 
granted in 1995, and to Commissioner Henry's point, this would set a precedence for any steep 
residential lot. He concluded that for the proposed variance to be approved, it must meet all nine of 
the established criteria in WSMC 17.80.058 5 a-i, for which, in this case, it does not meet any criteria 
and would be considered granting of a special privilege as other developers have been forced to build 
on steeper residential lots. Chairman Hohensee stated that allowing residential lots to build up to the 
property line is a big-city feel, not a small-town feel like they identified as desirable for the City of 
White Salmon through its Comprehensive Plan update. 
 
Commissioner Gilchrist stated that he believed the variance in 1995 considered then Lot 2, including 
what now has two other houses on it. An average find could have been that a sufficient portion of the 
original lot could meet the standard front setback, but now on the most western end, the lot should 
have received a zero-foot setback in his option. He stated that his interpretation of small-town feel 
meant a diversity of home types and density, not necessarily large front lawns. He does not believe 
granting this variance grants any other precedence than that established by granting a 10-foot front 
setback in 1995.  
 
Chairman Hohensee requested Commissioner Gilchrist find the delta from the residential structure 
was to be built from the 10-ft front setback. 
 
Commissioner Stevenson restated that the NE Tohomish St is unique because it encompasses part of 
the hillside, and the property is unique because it starts 10/15 feet below road grade. He stated that 
he believes no precedence is being set because no other similar property would be eligible. He further 
said that he agreed with Commissioner Gilchrist's comments. 
 
Chairman Hohensee rebutted Commissioner Stevenson by stating that if any developer building on a 
slope should be granted a variance, then the appropriate way to address that concern should be 
through building and zoning codes. 
 
Commissioner Seth Gilchrist noted that, based on the topographic lines presented by the applicant’s 
site plan, that the house, if presented at a 10-ft setback, would be built on a 57-percent average grade 
from the front to the back of the house, a 7-percent difference. Chairman Hohensee stated the slope 
difference would require a change in the cost of the building structure plan but should be considered 
manageable.  

13



City of White Salmon      

Planning Commission Minutes – October 26, 2022 

Page 8 of 8 

 
Vote 

TIE, MOTION FAILS 2–2.  
Henry – Nay, Stevenson – Aye, Gilchrist – Aye, Hohensee – Nay. 
Robert’s Rule states that the majority is required for a vote to pass. A tie vote is not a majority.  
 
City Attorney Ken Woodrich explained that the new motion has to be made in the affirmative. He 
stated that unless there is a motion to approve with conditions, it sounds like there has been a 
determination because, following Robert's Rule, the application is denied by virtue of a motion to 
approve failed to pass. So, the action to deny (option #3) is not a motion in the affirmative; it is a 
motion in the negative, therefore, is not an appropriate motion under Robert's Rules.  
 
Attempted Motion 
Moved by Tom Stevenson. No Commissioner Seconded Motion. 
Motion to approve with conditions Variance 2022.001 regarding WSMC 17.24.040(F), regarding 
density provisions, to allow a 0-ft front setback for the property addressed at 716 NE Tohomish 
Street. 
1. The applicant has to prove that the right-of-way that runs up against is more than 10 feet below 

the level of the roadway. 
 

No Commissioner Seconded Motion, MOTION DIES. 
Therefore Variance 2022.001 is DENIED BY DEFAULT.  
 
The applicant, Stephen Kingsford-Smith, asked if there was any remedy for only having four 
Commissioners present for the public hearing vote. Attorney Woodrich stated there is no remedy as a 
quorum is present, and the commission could take action, and it did.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:52 p.m. 

 

Greg Hohensee, Chairman  Erika Castro Guzman, City Associate Planner 

 

14



File Attachments for Item:

3. Approval of Minutes - November 9, 2022

15



 

 

 

CITY OF WHITE SALMON 
Planning Commission Workshop - Wednesday, November 9, 2022 

DRAFT 

  

COMMISSION AND ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL PRESENT 

  Commission Members: 

Greg Hohensee, Chairman 

Tom Stevenson 

Seth Gilchrist  

Michael Morneault (via Zoom)  

Ross Henry (Excused after 7:10 p.m.) 

Staff: 

Jeff Broderick, City Land-Use Planner 

Erika Castro Guzman, City Assoicate Planner 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 

Chairman Greg Hohensee called the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m. A quorum of planning commissioner 
members was present. No audience members attended in person or by teleconference. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
No written public comment or spoken testimony was made. 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
1. Training Workshop 
 

Greg Hohensee, the Chairman, opened the discussion by acknowledging the Commissioners for 
attending the Planning Commission Work Session as a formal orientation to review the 
expectation of Planning Commission, and its mission, vision, and expectations. 
 
The Commissioners discussed the type of Planning Commission Meetings and Robert’s Rules of 
Order. Staff was included in the conversation to outline Staff's pre-application procedure and 
types of city land use decisions, focusing on Type II and Type III decisions and the typical public 
hearing procedure. 
 
Furthermore, the Planning Commission examined the Variance Approval Criteria and Conditional 
Use Approval Criteria.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 

 

Greg Hohensee, Chairman  Erika Castro Guzman, City Assoicate Planner 

 

16



File Attachments for Item:

4. Approval of Minutes - December 14, 2022

17



 

 

 

CITY OF WHITE SALMON 
Planning Commission Meeting - Wednesday, December 14, 2022 

DARFT 

  

COMMISSION AND ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL PRESENT 

  Commission Members: 

Greg Hohensee, Chairman 

Michael Morneault 

Seth Gilchrist  

Tom Stevenson (via Zoom) 

Ross Henry (Absent Excused)  

Staff: 

Jeff Broderick, City Land-Use Planner 

Erika Castro Guzman, City Associate Planner 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 

Chairman Greg Hohensee called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. A quorum of planning commissioner 
members was present. Four audience members attended in person and by teleconference. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. Approval of Meeting Minutes –April 13, 2022 
 

Moved by Michael Morneault. Seconded by Tom Stevenson. 

Motion to approve minutes of April 13, 2022, as written. 

MOTION CARRIED 4–0. Morneault – Aye, Stevenson – Aye, Gilchrist – Aye, Hohensee – Aye. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Troy Rayburn, City Administrator 

Troy Rayburn introduced himself to the Planning Commission as the new City Administrator and 
thanked the Commissioners for their public service. 
 

Bill Hunsaker, City Building Official and Fire Chief 
Bill Hunsaker informed the Planning Commission that he would attend the Klickitat County and the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) hosted Klickitat County Virtual Flood Risk Open 
House. He stated that he is the city’s designated representative and would be able to assist in 
providing information about the updated Flood Insurance Rate Map. Fire Chief Hunsaker noted that 
the city's only concern for flooding is Jewett Creek, primarily near the Columbia River.  
 
The new flood map is officially known as a Flood Insurance Rate Map. It identifies areas of flood risk 
(high, moderate, low). It will affect financial, planning, investment, and development decisions. 
Owners of structures in high-risk areas will need flood insurance if they have a loan from a federally 
regulated or insured lender. We encourage everyone to learn about their flood risk and purchase 
flood insurance. The revised map is available online for public review and comment. You can view the 
maps here: Klickitat Map Viewer. 

 

  

18

https://waecy.maps.arcgis.com/apps/StorytellingSwipe/index.html?appid=3c24d2fc30d441f299e027248977a233


City of White Salmon      

Planning Commission Minutes – December 14, 2022 

Page 2 of 5 

PUBLIC HEARING 
2. Proposed Conditional Use Permit 2022.006 
 

Public Hearing  
Greg Hohensee, the Chairman, opened the public hearing at 5:34 p.m. and read the Appearance of 
Fairness Doctrine to the planning commissioners for the public hearing; no conflict of interests or 
concerns arose.  
 
Public Comment 
No written public comment or spoken testimony was made. 
 
Staff Presentation  
The Land-use Planner, Jeff Broderick, presented the conditional use permit report to the Planning 
Commission. 

 

The applicant, Jenessa VanDehey, on behalf of Feast Market 
LLC, seeks to obtain a Conditional Use Permit as per White 
Salmon Municipal Code 17.48.030 to provide a 
commercial/residential mix located at 218 E Jewett Blvd to 
eventually separate a one-unit apartment for a long term 
rental (60%) from a food/beverage commercial business 
frontage (40%). The existing building is 1,107 square feet; it is 
a one-story structure built in 1904 and most recently 
renovated in 2022, with access from E Jewett Blvd and NE 
Tohomish St. 
 

The property, 218 E Jewett Blvd, is located in downtown White 
Salmon between two mixed commercial properties. The 
structure is currently considered commercial use, business 
office space. The site has two grade levels; each generally 
flushes to the north and south right-of-way.  
 
The purpose of the conditional use permit process is to 
provide flexibility in the city's land use regulations to 
accommodate uses that may be appropriate in an established 
zone under certain circumstances. At the time of application, a 
review of the location, design, configuration, and potential 
impact of the proposed use was conducted by comparing the use to the goals and policies established 
in the city's comprehensive plan and the purpose of the zoning designation and this regulation. This 
review determined that the proposed use should be permitted by weighing the public need and 
benefit derived from the use against the impact it may cause.  
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends the Planning Commission approval with conditions Conditional 
Use Permit 2022.006, allowing a mix of commercial/residential use for the property address at 218 E 
Jewett Blvd, with the following conditions 

1. Business Licenses 
White Salmon Municipal Code 5.04.070 

 The business owner/ real property owner shall obtain and maintain a current City business 
license. The applicant’s contractor shall obtain a City business license before the issuing of 
any permits. The failure to maintain a business license may result in the cancellation of the 
Conditional Use Permit. 

 

19



City of White Salmon      

Planning Commission Minutes – December 14, 2022 

Page 3 of 5 

2. Outside Storage  
White Salmon Municipal Code 17.48.075(I) 
An outside covered refuse storage area shall be illustrated on the site plan before building 
plan review that meets the requirements outlined in WSMC 17.48.075(N). 

 
3. Commercial Frontage 

White Salmon Municipal Code 17.48.030(4) 
Street-facing, street-level residences, or the front portion of the structure facing E Jewett 
Avenue shall remain a commercial business and shall not be used for residential purposes of 
any kind; this includes short term rentals. 

 
4. Number of Spaces for Designated Uses 

White Salmon Municipal Code 17.72.090 
The minimum space required for a dwelling unit is two permanently maintained, on-site 
parking spaces. The minimum space that is necessary for the anticipated food and beverage 
places with sale and consumption on premises calculates as one permanently kept, on-site 
parking space for every 200 square-feet of gross floor area. Therefore the minimum number 
of parking spaces required for this project is four. 
 
The minimum parking space size is provided in WSMC 17.28.050; each space shall not be less 
than 8 feet, 6 inches wide, and 19 feet in length. The adequate four parking spaces shall be 
illustrated and provided on-site prior to Certificate of Occupancy. 

 
5. Fire Safety 

The City Planner accepted the Fire Chief’s code recommendations as a Condition of Approval, 
including: 2018 International Building Code (IBC), Section 508.4. These codes outline the 
appropriate fire wall that shall be required for mixed use in said the structure. 
 

6. Construction 
The City Planner accepted the Building Official’s code recommendation as a Condition of 
Approval, for which the commercial space shall provide (at a minimum) a shared bathroom 
that shall adhere to 2018 International Building Code (IBC), Section 2902. 

 

Discussion 

The Planning Commission discussed the conditional use permit proposal for 218 E Jewett Blvd, 
requesting a mix of commercial/residential use for the applicant's desires to eventually separate a 
one-unit apartment for long-term rental from a proposed food/beverage commercial business 
frontage. 

 

Commissioner Tom Stevenson thanked Staff for their clear and comprehensive staff report; he had no 
questions or clarification of the presentation. 

 

Commissioner Set Gilchrist addressed the front of the building and asked staff if there was a concern 
about the two entryways, that it looked like a duplex or if it was made to be used as a fronting 
residential area. Planner Jeff Broderick stated that the building's frontage is not a concern but may be 
further assessed when remodel plans are submitted to the city to assure compliance, but the 
applicant proposes commercial frontage use in accordance with city code and is a condition of 
approval.  

 

Commissioner Michael Morneault asked if the residential unit would be proposed as a long or short-
term rental. Planner Broderick stated that the proposed residential unit must be used for long-term 

20



City of White Salmon      

Planning Commission Minutes – December 14, 2022 

Page 4 of 5 

rental; it would not qualify for a commercial short-term rental permit application; regardless of a 
change in ownership, the conditional use permit runs with the property. Commissioner Morneault 
clarified if there was any part of the Washington State Code that amends the referenced International 
Building Code (IBC). Staff and Chairman Hohensee stated that Bill Hunsaker, as the Building Official, 
will be better at answering building code questions. Still, the city has adopted, by ordinance, the latest 
International Building Code standards. Commissioner Morneault said he just wanted to ensure that 
the city was following Washington State Building Code, which may differ from the International 
Building Code. 

 

Chairman Hohensee had no questions or clarification of the staff’s presentation. 

 
Applicant Presentation  
The applicant, Jenessa VanDehey, co-owner of Feast Market LLC, introduced herself and Shawn 
Simmons to thank the Planning Commission for hearing their conditional use permit application to get 
started in their new venture. She stated that they hope to open up a small ice cream shop in the front 
commercial space with long-term employee housing in the back. 
 
Discussion 

The Planning Commission had an opportunity to ask questions to the applicant of the application or 
presentation. 

 

Commissioner Stevenson, Gilchrist, and Chairman Hohensee had no questions or clarification of the 
applicant’s presentation. 

 

Commissioner Morneault asked if there would be access from the rear of the building to the 
commercial frontage. The applicant, Jenessa VanDehey, said no; she stated that the residence and 
commercial space would be separate. 

 
Motion 
Moved by Tom Stevenson. Seconded by Seth Gilchrist.  
Move to approve with conditions Conditional Use Permit 2022.006 allowing mix 
commercial/residential use for the property address at 218 E Jewett Blvd, with the conditions 
presented by staff. 
 
Discussion 
Commissioner Gilchrist stated that he appreciated the applicant submitting a complete application 
that met the city’s zoning conditional use permit criteria. 
 
Commissioner Stevenson agreed with Commissioner Gilchrist. He restated appreciation for Staff’s 
well-presented and clear staff report motion and conditions of approval of said conditional use. 
Commissioner Stevenson acknowledged that this property is near Downtown's Sweet Gum Tree but 
has no bearing on the outcome of the conditional use permit application.  

 

Vote 
MOTION CARRIED. 4–0.  
Morneault – Aye, Stevenson – Aye, Gilchrist – Aye, Hohensee – Aye. 
 
Chairman Hohensee closed the public hearing at 5:53 p.m. 
 

  

21



City of White Salmon      

Planning Commission Minutes – December 14, 2022 

Page 5 of 5 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
3. Staff's Follow-up on Training Workshop from November 9, 2022 

Planner Jeff Broderick presented the Development Review Team overview and proposed changes to 
the Planning Commission.  
 
This discussion consisted of Staff's follow-up on the Planning Commission's Training Workshop from 
November 9, 2022, where the Planning Commission addressed several items that would assist 
applicants in being better prepared for their application decision type and expectations of the 
process, including a more inclusive building permit review. Planner Broderick assures there will be 
more internal discussions as both land use decisions and building permits move through the process 
to avoid arguments after a permit has been issued and ensures compliance with the decision/permit. 
 
The Development Review Team primarily comprises city staff but may bring in other public agencies 
as necessary. The goal for staff is to be available and assist all proposed developers and citizens in 
effectively working through the city development code and standards, including following project 
schedules and inspections.  
 
Planner Broderick stated that there is a weekly set time available for an applicant to meet with staff, 
granted that quality materials are received a week before said meeting. For a developer to get on the 
development team’s agenda, they must first identify that this is a project they can develop, and to do 
so, staff will attempt to lay it out all in front of them. When the Development Review Packet forms 
are complete, City Community Development/ Special Project Coordinator, Erika Castro Guzman, will 
maintain the central record at City Hall.  
 
The purpose of the Development Review Team is (1) to ensure proper communication, (2) 
development review, and (3) documentation in all situations while the city is working with 
development. Staff stated that this is a living document, meaning that the team will be reviewing it 
about every six months to ensure that it meets our outlined measures of success, which are: (1) all 
communication with developers is in writing and well documented in the central file, (2) developers 
are well satisfied and feel the city is organized and professional (3) the city has an excellent reputation 
for its professionalism, and (3) documents are completed as planned. 
 
City Administrator Troy Rayburn emphasized staff's presentation by stating that these changes will 
increase the necessary documentation and create a more deliberative process as it applies to making 
a decision and reviewing any application. Furthermore acknowledged and thanked Planner Broderick 
and Project Coordinator Castro Guzman for their due diligence and for bringing attention to the need 
for a more professional approach to making decisions.  
 
Commissioner Gilchrist said he looks forward to the upcoming documentation improvements and 
accountability. Commissioner Stevenson agreed with Commissioner Gilchrist.  
 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:07 p.m. 

 

Greg Hohensee, Chairman  Erika Castro Guzman, City Associate Planner 

 

22



File Attachments for Item:

5. WS-VAR-2022.002, Blackmon

The Applicant seeks to obtain a variance to White Salmon Municipal Code 17.28.034(A-3) 

Dwelling Standards for an R-2 zoned lot located at 850 E Jewett Blvd to build a single-family 

residence eventually.

A copy of the proposed Variance is available on the City's website or by calling Erika  Castro 

Guzman at (509) 493-1133 x209. Written comments may be submitted to Erikac@ci.white-

salmon.wa.us by 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, February 8, 2023, noting in the subject line Public 

Hearing – Proposed Variance 2022.002. Individuals who wish to testify via teleconference or in 

person will be allowed to do so.

23



 

1 | V A R - 2 0 2 2 - 0 0 2  B l a c k m o n  
 

 

 

CITY OF WHITE SALMON 

PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING 

 

FEBRUARY 8, 2023 

 

 

VARIANCE APPLICATION 

WS-VAR-2022.002  

24



 

2 | V A R - 2 0 2 2 - 0 0 2  B l a c k m o n  
 

Findings and Decision 

City of White Salmon Administrative Review for a Variance 

File Number:  VAR-2022-002 Blackmon 

Decision Date: January 30, 2023 

Planning Commission Hearing Date: February 8, 2023 

Land Use Decision Type: Type II 

Applicant: Sarah Blackmon 

Property Owners: Sarah and Joel Blackmon 

Subject Property Tax Lot(s) and Legal Description(s):  03113012001400, TL 18Z in NW ¼ NE ¼ & STREET 

IRR TRACTS TO WS; 30-3-11 

Address: 850 East Jewett Boulevard; Located at the corner of Pole Yard Road and East Jewett Boulevard 

Figure 1: Subject Property 

 

 

  

Subject Property 

25



 

3 | V A R - 2 0 2 2 - 0 0 2  B l a c k m o n  
 

Applicable City Code 

WSMC 17.80.058-Variance Purpose and Criteria. 

Application for variances from the terms of this title provided that any variance granted shall be subject 
to such conditions as will assure compliance with the following purpose and criteria:  

1. Purpose. The purpose of the variance process is to provide a mechanism whereby the city 
may grant relief from the provisions of this chapter where practical difficulty renders 
compliance with the provisions of this chapter an unnecessary hardship, where the 
hardship is a result of the physical characteristics of the subject property and where the 
purpose of this chapter and of the city comprehensive plan can be fulfilled.  

… 

5. Approval Criteria. The decision maker may approve or approve with modifications an 

application for a variance from the provisions of this chapter if:  

a. The variance will not constitute a grant of special privilege inconsistent with the 

limitation upon uses of other properties in the vicinity and zoning district in 

which the subject property is located;  

b. The variance is necessary because of special circumstances relating to the size, 

shape, topography, location or surroundings of the subject property, to provide 

it with use rights and privileges permitted to other properties in the vicinity and 

in the zoning district in which the subject property is located;  

c. The granting of the variance will not be materially detrimental to the public 

welfare or injurious to the property or improvements in the vicinity and zoning 

district in which the subject property is located;  

d. The special circumstances of the subject property make the strict enforcement of 

the provisions of this chapter an unnecessary hardship to the property owner;  

e. The special circumstances of the subject property are not the result of the 

actions of the Applicant;  

f. The variance is the minimum necessary to fulfill the purpose and the need of the 

Applicant;  

g. The variance is consistent with the purposes and intent of this chapter;  

h. The variance is consistent with the goals and policies of the city comprehensive 

plan; and  

i. The fact that property may be utilized more profitably will not be an element of 

consideration before the decision maker.  

(Ord. No. 2012-11-905, 11-26-2012; Ord. No. 2017-04-1005, § 1, 4-5-2017) 

Other sections of the City code are indicated herein by reference.   

26



 

4 | V A R - 2 0 2 2 - 0 0 2  B l a c k m o n  
 

List of Exhibits 

Exhibit A………………………………. File VAR 2022-002 Application and supporting materials-includes site  

              plans not used 

Exhibit B………………………………. Revised site plans submitted on December 2, 2022 

Exhibit C………………………………. 2021 Variance decision and supporting documents, File 2021-003-                  

              O’Donnell-referred to as the 2021-003 decision throughout this      

                         document. Site plan on page 66 of combined exhibits.  

Proposal 

The Applicant proposes to construct a residence with a wing of the residence that is below City 

standards regarding structure width. White Salmon Municipal Code (WSMC) 17.28.034(3) states all 

dwellings shall not be less than twenty feet in width at the narrowest point of its first story. The 

Applicant proposes a structural width of sixteen feet for one of two wings of the residence. (Exhibit B) 

Variance applications are processed as a Type II review.  

Property Description 

Per the application submitted, the property is 12,756 square feet. The property borders NE Pole Yard 

Road/NE Vine Street on the northwest, East Jewett Boulevard along the southwestern border, and the 

eastern/northeastern edge of the property borders Jewett Creek. The property is mostly flat but does 

slope steeply toward Jewett Creek on the eastern and northeastern portions of the property.  

Previous Land Use Decision 

Because Jewett Creek runs along the eastern and northeastern perimeter of the property, the previous 

owners of this parcel sought a critical areas variance (File 2021-003 VAR-O’Donnell, also references to 

File 2021-003 CAO O’Donnell-they are the same file and land use action) to establish a buildable area as 

most of this parcel is within a critical environmental area due the proximity of Jewett Creek. Without a 

buildable area being established, it was impossible to build on this parcel without some kind of critical 

area variance. The critical area variance was granted (Exhibit C-site plan on page 66 of combined 

attachments) with conditions. Throughout these findings and recommended decision, File 2021-003 

VAR- O’Donnell will be referred to as the 2021-003 decision.  

Because of the shape of the buildable area established as part of the 2021-003 decision, a proposed 

residence and supporting facilities such as driveways shall fit within the buildable envelope. This means 

that large residences or residences with certain shapes may not fit within the buildable envelope. Per 

White Salmon Municipal Code (WSMC) 17.80.058(5)(f), “The variance is the minimum necessary to fulfill 

the purpose and the need of the applicant”. The variance granted as a result of the 2021-003 decision 

fulfilled this requirement by establishing a buildable area. The 2021-003 decision did not grant 

construction of a specific type of residence or allow for not meeting City standards for structure width.  

In addition, per WSMC 18.10.125(C)(4), “Any alteration is the minimum necessary to allow for 

reasonable use of the property.” The buildable area was approved by the Planning Commission at their 

February 9, 2022 meeting (the 2021-003 decision) and allowed for reasonable use in accordance with 

these standards.  

27



 

5 | V A R - 2 0 2 2 - 0 0 2  B l a c k m o n  
 

Note About Site Plan in Exhibit C 

Staff notes the site plan with a buildable area (Exhibit C-page 66 of combined attachments) shows a 

proposed building. Although a building was drawn as part of the proposed buildable area site plan, it 

was the buildable area in relation to geohazards, riparian buffers, creek buffers, etc., that were 

established as part of the 2021-003 decision, not approval of a specific type, style, or size of the 

structure. The findings and conditions of approval in the 2021-003 decision did not establish building 

size or dimensions standards or grant variances to building standards.   

 

  

28



 

6 | V A R - 2 0 2 2 - 0 0 2  B l a c k m o n  
 

WHITE SALMON MUNICIPAL CODE (WSMC) 

TITLE 17 – ZONING 

WSMC 17.28.034 PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS. 

A. Dwelling standards:  

1. A single-family residential dwelling shall have a minimum floor area of six hundred 

square feet excluding porches, carports, garages, and basement or other rooms used 

exclusively for the storage or housing of mechanical or central heating equipment.  

FINDING: Applicant has proposed a structure greater than 600 square feet, so it 

meets the square footage standards. The issue at hand is the width of the 

proposed structure which is below City standards.  

2. All single-family dwellings shall be placed on permanent foundations.  

FINDING: This will be reviewed at the time the building permit application is 

received.  

3. All dwellings shall be not less than twenty feet in width at the narrowest point of its first 

story.  

FINDING: Per plans submitted in December 2022 (Exhibit B), one wing of the 

residence is proposed to be 16 feet wide which does not meet City standards.  

4. All manufactured homes must be new on the date of installation and comply with 

applicable siting standards in Section 17.68.130.  

5. Maximum building height shall not exceed twenty-eight feet in residential zones.  

6. No business signs shall be erected or displayed on residential lots or adjacent street 

right-of-way buffer strips, except as provided in Sign Ordinance, Chapter 15.12 of this 

code.  

7. No contour or existing topography shall be substantially altered by fill, excavation, 

channeling or other device that would cause flooding, inundation, siltation, or erosion by 

storm water on adjoining lots, open spaces, or rights-of-way.  

B. Accessory use, accessory buildings and garages.  

1. Any plumbing and/or sewer facilities in any accessory building or garage shall be subject 

to International Building Code requirements and limited to the exclusive private use of 

the residents of the principal building.  

2. Sewer stub-out facilities shall not be provided in or adjacent to any garage or accessory 

building for use within that building unless the building contains an approved ADU.  

3. Garages and all accessory buildings used as studios, workshops or for home occupations 

shall conform to International Building Code requirements and to the setback 

requirements for principal buildings except that such structures may be located up to five 

29



 

7 | V A R - 2 0 2 2 - 0 0 2  B l a c k m o n  
 

feet from the rear lot line if the rear lot line abuts a dedicated alleyway of at least fifteen 

feet in width.  

C. Fences.  

1. Fence heights shall not exceed six feet along rear or side lot lines.  

2. Fence heights shall not exceed five feet along front lot lines.  

3. On corner lots the fence height along the side yard adjacent to the street shall not 

exceed four feet for the first twenty-five feet from the lot corner to ensure adequate view 

clearance per Section 17.68.090.  

4. Fences shall not be constructed or kept in any manner which could constitute a safety 

hazard to the person or property of adjoining landowners or to the general public.  

(Ord. No. 2012-11-905, 11-26-2012) 

FINDING: Once the Applicant submits plans that meet City standards, plans will be reviewed for 

compliance based on the above-stated standards found in WSMC 17.28.034 and any other 

relevant standards per City code. These standards include but are not limited to setbacks from 

property lines, critical areas, creeks, geohazards, height, parking areas within the buildable 

envelope, and access.  

WHITE SALMON MUNICIPAL CODE (WSMC) 

TITLE 17 – ZONING 

WSMC 17.80.058 VARIANCE PURPOSE AND CRITERIA 

Application for variances from the terms of this title; provided, that any variance granted shall be subject 
to such conditions as will assure compliance with the following purpose and criteria:  

1. Purpose. The purpose of the variance process is to provide a mechanism whereby the city 

may grant relief from the provisions of this chapter where practical difficulty renders 

compliance with the provisions of this chapter an unnecessary hardship, where the 

hardship is a result of the physical characteristics of the subject property and where the 

purpose of this chapter and of the city comprehensive plan can be fulfilled.  

FINDING: This parcel was subject to significant development restrictions due to 
critical areas related to the property’s location next to Jewett Creek. However, 
the 2021-003 decision alleviated these restrictions by establishing a buildable 
area within these critical environmental areas as long as other conditions 
approved in the 2021-003 decision are met. The purpose of the 2021-003 
decision was to establish a buildable area, not guarantee the construction of a 
specific house shape or size. Not being able to build a home is a hardship and 
one that was remediated in the 2021-003 decision. That the Applicants cannot 
build a specific house style that fits within the buildable area is not a hardship.  

2. Scope. This section shall apply to each application for a variance from the provisions of 

this chapter.  

30



 

8 | V A R - 2 0 2 2 - 0 0 2  B l a c k m o n  
 

3. Application Submittal and Contents. The application for a variance shall be submitted to 

the city on forms provided by the city, along with the appropriate fees established by city 

fee regulations. The application shall include all materials required pursuant to 

application requirements.  

FINDING: Applicants submitted appropriate application materials.  

4. Permit Review Process. Variance applications shall be processed as a Type II decision 

according to the procedures set forth in Title 19.  

FINDING: This land use application was reviewed per Type II decision standards. 
Public notices were sent And a public hearing has been scheduled before the 
Planning Commission on February 8, 2023. Public notices were mailed to 
adjacent property owners, agencies and a notice posted on the property on 
January 4, 2023. The comment period lasted from January 4, 2023 to the 
Planning Commission hearing on February 8, 2023.  

5. Approval Criteria. The decision maker may approve or approve with modifications an 

application for a variance from the provisions of this chapter if:  

a. The variance will not constitute a grant of special privilege inconsistent with the 

limitation upon uses of other properties in the vicinity and zoning district in 

which the subject property is located;  

FINDING: Other property owners do not enjoy the ability to construct 
residential structures that are less than 20 feet in width at their 
narrowest point. In the last four months, Staff has recently met with 
potential applicants of other properties and have advised these 
applicants inquiring about constructing homes less than 20 feet in width 
as something that would not be permitted. Staff finds allowing a portion 
of a residence that is less than 20 feet in width constitutes the granting 
of a privilege. 

b. The variance is necessary because of special circumstances relating to the size, 

shape, topography, location or surroundings of the subject property, to provide 

it with use rights and privileges permitted to other properties in the vicinity and 

in the zoning district in which the subject property is located;  

FINDING: The 2021-003 decision remediated the special circumstances 
regarding the ability to develop this lot and provided the ability to 
construct a residence. That the Applicants want to build a specific type 
of house does not make a variance necessary. It is possible to build a 
residence on this property within the buildable envelope. Special 
circumstances relate to attributes of the parcel, not attributes of 
desired architectural styles.  

c. The granting of the variance will not be materially detrimental to the public 

welfare or injurious to the property or improvements in the vicinity and zoning 

district in which the subject property is located;  

31



 

9 | V A R - 2 0 2 2 - 0 0 2  B l a c k m o n  
 

FINDING: Staff finds that the granting of this variance would be 
detrimental to the public welfare as this is incompatible with advice 
given to other potential applicants asking about building sub-20 foot 
width structures and as previously discussed, is a special privilege not 
accorded to other property owners in the community and property 
owners in the vicinity of the subject property are not permitted to 
construct residences less than 20 feet in width.   

d. The special circumstances of the subject property make the strict enforcement of 

the provisions of this chapter an unnecessary hardship to the property owner;  

FINDING: The special circumstances of the subject property were 
addressed in the 2021-003 decision making an allowance for a buildable 
area in an area that would have otherwise been unbuildable. As 
discussed previously, because someone cannot build a specific shape of 
home is not an unnecessary hardship.  

e. The special circumstances of the subject property are not the result of the 

actions of the Applicant;  

FINDING: The 2021-003 decision was initiated by the previous property 
owner. This decision runs with the land and applies to future property 
owners. Although the geographic constraints of this property are not 
the result of actions of the owner, the established buildable area of this 
property existed and the decision was part of the public record at the 
time the Applicants acquired the parcel. In addition, the Applicant has 
proposed a structure that does not meet City standards and a structure 
meeting City residential-size minimums can be built within the building 
envelope. Staff finds proposing a structure that does not meet City 
standards is a result of actions of the Applicant.  

f. The variance is the minimum necessary to fulfill the purpose and the need of the 

Applicant;  

FINDING: The Applicant can build within the buildable area established 
by the 2021-003 decision and through the variance process associated 
with that decision, determined what was the minimum necessary 
amount of buildable land given geographic and critical area constraints. 
Because the Applicant wishes to build a structure of a structure of a 
specific size and shape, that does not meet this standard as the 
Applicant needs to show that no residence meeting code could be built. 
Although perhaps not allowing the style of structure the Applicant 
wishes, the buildable area is of sufficient size that a residence meeting 
minimum dimension standards may be built.   

g. The variance is consistent with the purposes and intent of this chapter;  

FINDING: The intent of this chapter is to grant relief to property owners 
who may not otherwise be able to develop their property. The previous 
landowners, via the 2021-003 decision, were granted relief to 
geographic and environmental constraints by creating a buildable area. 

32



 

10 | V A R - 2 0 2 2 - 0 0 2  B l a c k m o n  
 

Granting additional relief to allow for discretionary architectural 
attributes does not fulfill the purpose and intent of this chapter as the 
Applicants can still build a residence, just not a residence as they have 
proposed.  

h. The variance is consistent with the goals and policies of the city comprehensive 

plan; and  

FINDING: The policies via the City and Comprehensive Plan encourage 
infill development. The City is not preventing the Applicant from 
developing this property. What the City recommends is development 
code as currently written for structure widths be enforced.  

i. The fact that property may be utilized more profitably will not be an element of 

consideration before the decision maker.  

FINDING: Specific economic reasons were not included in the 
application, aside from a preference for a specific type of residence.  

(Ord. No. 2012-11-905, 11-26-2012; Ord. No. 2017-04-1005, § 1, 4-5-2017) 

RECOMMENDATION AND SUGGESTED MOTION(S) 
 
The Planning Director recommends denial of Variance 2022.002, a variance to reduce the width 
of a residence to 16 feet at the narrowest point based upon the findings for the variance 
request as provided by WSMC 17.80.058-Variance purpose and criteria and the staff report. 
There are no recommended conditions of approval as part of the staff report. 
 
Option 1: Move to approve as is Variance 2022.002 in relation to WSMC 17.28.034(A)(3) 
regarding width provisions to allow a 16-foot wide structure for the property addressed as 850 
E Jewett Avenue.  
 
Option 2: Move to approve with conditions Variance 2022.002 in relation to WSMC 
17.28.034(A)(3), regarding width provisions, to allow a 16-foot wide structure for the property 
addressed as 850 E Jewett Avenue. 
 
Option 3: Move to deny Variance 2022.002 in relation to WSMC 17.28.034(A)(3), regarding 
width provisions, to allow a 16-foot wide structure for the property addressed as 850 E Jewett 
Avenue.  

/////////////////////////////// END OF RECOMMENDED DECISION \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 

 

 
__________________________                           January 30, 2023    

Jeff Broderick                Date  

City Land Use Planner 

33



34



35



36



37



Exhibit A

1 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
38



SCALE: 1 "= 100 FEET 

100 0 40 60 80 100 

nwr., 7.,;9 r.AA Flr.llRFS Flr.11 F 

KLICKITAT COUNTY 
PARCEL NO. 03113012001400 

DA TE: 05 24 2021 

PARCEL MAP FIGURE 
O'DONNELL PROPERTY CRITICAL AREAS HABITAT STUDY 2 

AKS ENGINEERING & FORESTRY, LLC i-=--· �:-1 
9600 NE 126TH A Vf., STE 2520 
VANCOUVf.R, WA 98682 
P:360.882.0419 F:360.882.0426 oks-en 

Exhibit A

2 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
39



EXISTING CONDITIONS 
PARGELIIO3113O12OO14O0 LOCATED IN THE NORTHV'IEST QUARTER OF 
THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 30, TOV'INSHIP 3 NORTH, RAN6E 

II EAST, v-llLLAMETTE MERIDIAN, KLICKITAT GOUTY, v-lASHIN6TON 

I 

I 

/ 

,' Roty , 
I I I 

// J,.----� 

I 

' / 
10 X TRUNK DIAMETER OF �\TE OAK 

HHITE OAK DRIP LINE AYERA6E 

.. 
0 TRUNK DIAMETER OF HHITE OAK 

0 SET 5/e," X BO" IRON ROD V'l\TH PLASTIC, C.AP 
0 FOUND MONUMENT OF REC.ORD 
0 C,ALC.ULATED, NOT FOUND OR SET 

I J DEED OR PLAT CALL 
@ SANITARY SEHER MANHOLE 
® STORM SEHER MANHOLE 
□ STORM DRAIN 
";j' HATER VALVE 
� C,ATC,H BASIN 
-0- POHER POLE 
� 6UY HIRE ANG.HOR 

OHHM ORDINARY H\6H HATER MARK 

t9BS72 

4 ti! 2i 

JHD 

D:\2019\B172\198172 .pro 

'"" EXISTING CONDITIONS 

rfHITE SALMON HASHIN6TON 

lTANDARD 50 
HAZARDOU5 

SLOPES 
5ETBAc.K 

,. 

ORl61NAL SCALE 

15' BUILDING 
OFFSET FROM 

Ii'� TREE CANOPY 

� ,,. 
�<?o 
�� 

,,.� o_,,.s,_,. 

1"=30' 

�� 
�'

'11 
� 

EA 

_,.._r_ 
30 0 30 

6RAPHIG SCALE 

60 90 

EXISTIN6 CONDITIONS 
DATA AS PER 
TERRA 5URYEYIN6 

BELL DESIGN COMPANY d1:M::
CIYILENGINEBRINO LAND SURVEYING 'Mp•!i 

qoo HEST STEUBEN STREET, P.o.B. 30fJ, BIN6EN, HA. qooos l1'1ililb 
PHONE (5,0qJ 4q3-3e,fJ6, FAX (5,0q) 4'<3-3ee5 iJ!f!'l· X 

belldesl nc:. on .c.om e r I 

Exhibit A

3 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
40



- A

PROPOSED SINGLE FAMILY 
BUILDING ENVELOPE 

PARGELIIO3113O12OO14OO LOGATED IN THE NORTHv-lEST QUARTER OF 

THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SEGTION 30, TOv-lNSHIP 3 NORTH, RAN6E 

II EAST, v-llLLAMETTE MERIDIAN, KLIGKITAT GOUTY, v-lASHIN6TON 

/ 

I 
,' Ro,., 

I " I 

I I I 

I / 1-------,r-
I 

LBGBND 

- - - - - - APPARENT TOP OF SLOPE 

I 

' / 

,. 
0 

10 X TRUNK DIAMETER OF HHITE OAK 

HHITE OAK DRIP LINE AVERA0E 

TRUNK DIAMETER OF HHITE OAK 

0 SET s;e· X 30" IRON ROD HITH PLASTIC, C.AP 
0 FOUND MONUMENT OF REC.ORD 
0 C.ALC.ULATED, NOT FOUND OR SET 

I J DEED OR PLAT C.ALL 
@ SANITARY SEHER MANHOLE 
f) STORM SEHER MANHOLE 
0 STORM DRAIN 
';;' HATER VALVE 
§I C,A TC.H BASIN 
-0- POHER POLE 
• 0UY HIRE ANC,HOR 

·---------------.,
' . ' .' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' -----------------' 
GEO HAZARD 

OFFSET ZONE 

lTANDARDSO 
HAZARDOIJ5 

SLOPES 
SETBAC.K 

ORIGINAL SGALE 

__.._c_ 
30 0 30 

GRAPHIG SGALE 

EA 

1"=30' 

60 90 

OHHM ORDINARY Hl6H HATER MARK RIPARIAN ENHANC,EMENT 
AREA - 483B S.F. SEE SHEET C1 .2 FOR 

HAZARDOUS SLOPE NOTES 
EX15TIN6 C.ONDITION5 
DATA AS PER 

\ \B0CJobs\jobs\2019\8172\198172 .pro 

'()' 
-

19 
..

•ii 

NO-BUILD ZONE 

CRITICAL AREA 

HAZARDOUS SLOPES 

JOHN O'DONNELL 

HHITE !>ALMON WA5t-11N6TON 

TERRA 5URVEYIN0 

BELL DESIGN COMPANY 
CIVJLENGJNBBRING LANDSCIRVBYING 

qoo !'EST STEV6EN STREET, P.O.B. 30t>, BIN6EN, i"IA. qe,e,05 

PHONE (50qJ 4'13-3t>Bb, FAX (50q) ,.q3-3e,e,5 
belldesl ncom on .com 

Exhibit A

4 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
41



Use Plans in 
Exhibit B

X

Exhibit A

5 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
42



Use Plans in Exhibit B

X

Exhibit A

6 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
43



Use Plans in Exhibit B

X

Exhibit A

7 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
44



------

fl 

��l..l.��\:,,i·0=·:·:.:-�-,,,';:;','.'�r/�:,;_1;:_·�/,;"�"' .. �.i·"�' ,,.,:' .. ,,,.--s.�O:\A""'��\tvtt-\\M,
_/·,\,·,• 

Exhibit A

8 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
45



Principals 

Roe Kn1pp1•t /I.IA 

l\·n is w J-:i::c!n, /\It\ 

tlrtJfl Antirn �a /1!A 

I " 

, 

,o 
� 

.fl."' 

... 

�"" 
' 

''->. 
• 

, 

' " 
. ' 

tt
·· 

��� 
..., ... 

I 

\ 

KDA ARCHITECTURE 

Exhibit B

9 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
46



Exhibit B

10 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
47



Exhibit B

11 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon

48



12 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon

Exhibit C

49



13 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
50



14 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
51



15 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
52



16 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
53



17 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
54



18 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
55



19 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
56



20 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
57



21 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
58



22 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
59



23 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
60



24 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
61



25 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
62



26 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
63



27 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
64



28 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
65



29 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
66



30 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
67



31 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
68



32 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
69



33 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
70



34 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
71



35 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
72



36 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
73



37 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
74



38 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
75



39 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
76



40 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
77



41 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
78



42 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
79



43 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
80



44 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
81



45 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
82



46 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
83



47 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
84



48 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
85



49 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
86



50 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
87



51 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
88



52 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
89



53 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
90



54 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
91



55 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
92



56 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
93



57 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
94



58 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
95



59 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
96



60 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
97



61 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
98



62 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
99



63 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
100



64 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
101



65 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
102



66 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
103



67 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
104



68 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
105



69 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
106



70 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
107



71 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
108



72 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
109



73 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
110



74 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
111



75 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
112



76 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
113



77 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
114



78 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
115



79 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
116



80 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
117



81 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
118



82 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
119



83 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
120



84 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
121



85 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
122



86 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
123



87 File VAR-2022-002 Blackmon
124


	Top
	1.	Approval of Minutes - March 10, 2021
	2021.03.10 Planning Commission Meeting Draft

	2.	Approval of Minutes - October 26, 2022
	2022.26.10 Planning Commission Final Draft Minutes 1.21.2023

	3.	Approval of Minutes - November 9, 2022
	2022.09.11 Planning Commission Final Draft Minutes 1.21.2023

	4.	Approval of Minutes - December 14, 2022
	2022.14.12 Planning Commission Final Draft Minutes 1.21.2023

	5.	WS-VAR-2022.002
	FINAL Recommended Decision VAR 2022-002 Blackmon_01.30.23
	Revised-Blackmon Combined Exhibits-incl. application 2.8.2023

	Bottom

